
 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 
March 24, 2025 6:30 PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. March 10, 2025 

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. SUP #25006 – Bruce and Paula Shaffer (Email) 
B. SUP #25006 – Catherine Lein (Email) 
C. SUP #25006 – Richard and Marilyn Hallgren (Email) 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. SUP #25006 – Precious Sprouts Group Child Care 
B. ZA #25002 – Sec. 86-755 – Schedule of Requirements for Parking Space 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. SUP #25003 – Okemos Local Investments 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Township Board update 
B. Liaison reports 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA page 2 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

March 24, 2025 6:30 PM 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
April 14, 2025 

  
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUP #25007 – Mister Car Wash Major SUP Amendment 
 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. SUP #25006 – Precious Sprouts Group Child Care 
B. ZA #25002 – Sec. 86-755 – Schedule of Requirements for Parking Space 
 

3. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 



Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING PLANNING COMMISSION  
5000 Okemos Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Central Fire Station-Community Room 
Monday, March 10, 2025, 6:30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Chair Shrewsbury, Vice Chair Snyder, Commissioners Brooks, McConnell, McCurtis, 

and Romback. 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: Planner Shorkey 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Chair Shrewsbury called the March 10, 2025, regular meeting for the Meridian Township 
Planning Commission to order at 6:31 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Chair Shrewsbury called the roll of the Board. All Board members except for Commissioner 
Romback were present.  Commissioner Romback arrived at 6:34 pm. 
 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 
None 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Shrewsbury asked for approval of the agenda.  
 
Commissioner McCurtis moved to approve the March 10, 2025, Regular Planning 
Commission meeting agenda. Seconded by Vice Chair Snyder. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Chair Shrewsbury asked for approval of the minutes. 
 
Commissioner McCurtis moved to approve Minutes of the February 24, 2025 meeting 
with minor amendments. Seconded by Vice chair Snyder. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. SUP #25003 – Okemos Land Investments 
 



Page 2 

Principal Planner Shorkey gave an overview of the Special Use Permit process and briefed 
the Commission on the application. 
 
Commissioner McCurtis asked for more details about the timeline for completing the 
demolition and building of the proposed project, expressing concerns that the developer be 
held accountable to a reasonable timeline.  Principal Planner Shorkey outlined the parts of 
the planning process that involve specific timelines. 
 
Commissioner Brooks noted that the reason the Commission denied a previous permit for 
this development was to get an updated traffic study.   Commissioner Brooks then asked 
about the non-conformance of the lot size.  Principal Planner Shorkey stated that so long as 
the construction fits the existing building, no variance will be required. 
 
Commissioner McCurtis asked about the proposed appearance of the property.  Anderson 
Grandstaff, the attorney representing the applicant, explained that the original plan was to 
remodel the existing building, but the new plan proposes a new but smaller building.  John 
Gumma, project engineer, noted that the project should be completed within six months 
and the building is intended to look like a house consistent with the applicant’s branding. 
 
Commissioner Romback asked why the plan was changed from remodeling the original 
building to building a new structure.  Mr. Gumma stated that it would be faster, easier, and 
energy-compliant to build new than to rehabilitate the existing building. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked for more details regarding the traffic study. Zach Lask, 
project manager, interpreted the data provided and noted that the building size will limit 
the amount of traffic.  Principal Planner Shorkey noted that if the Road Department has 
problems with the site plan, it will not be approved until those problems are resolved. 
 
Commissioner Romback questioned the long-term viability of the type of business planned 
for the location.  Mr. Grandstaff noted that market research shows the need for this type of 
business in this area based on data that shows residents are traveling out of the area to 
access this type of business. 
 
Commissioners indicated via straw poll that they would likely support the permit. 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
A. 2025 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Appointment 

 
Commissioner Brooks stated that he would like to be appointed to the Planning 
Commission’s seat on the BRA. 
 
Commissioner McConnell moved to appoint Commissioner Brandon Brooks to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.  Supported by Commissioner McCurtis. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 



Page 3 

A. Township Board Update 
 
Principal Planner Shorkey stated that there was an update to the Emergency Management 
Plan, Rezoning 2025-03 was discussed as was potential housing Tax Increment Funding.  
Action on Rezoning 2025-03 will be taken at the next meeting. 
 

B. Liaison Reports 
 
Commissioner McConnell noted that the Environmental Commission welcomed a new staff 
member and adopted a resolution for a grant application for installing solar on a fire station 
and submitted a proposal for small scale anaerobic digestion units. 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey noted that Puff Puff Tobacco is going into a vacant property on 
Marsh Road and is expected to open in April.  Principal Planner Shorkey gave Commissioners a 
copy of the Notice of Intent-CHILL Grant public notice that appeared in Lansing Pulse. 

 
12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

 
None 
 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Commissioners discussed clarifying requirements for traffic studies. 
 
Commissioners discussed attendance at upcoming meetings. Principal Planner Shorkey asked 
that members notify him immediately if they were going to be absent as that would mean that 
there would be no quorum. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Shrewsbury called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:22 pm 
 
Commissioner McConnell moved to adjourn the March 10, 2025 regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission. Seconded by Commissioner Brooks. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 



From: Paula Shaffer
To: Brian Shorkey
Subject: Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts Group Child Care)
Date: Tuesday, March 4, 2025 11:44:44 AM

You don't often get email from paulashaffer@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

Dear Mr. Shorkey,

We received your letter yesterday inviting comments on the Special Use Permit for Precious Sprouts Group Child
Care, and since we are unable to attend public hearing on March 24, 2025, chose to reply via the email option.

While we appreciate the need for childcare options in the township, we are opposed to operating a group child care
home in our subdivision for the following reasons:  First, this is a quiet neighborhood without sidewalks.  Both day
and night, residents walk, often accompanied by their dogs on leashes or pushing babies and toddlers in strollers,
ride bikes, skateboards and scooters in the subdivision streets.  Also, students and their parents walk to and from
school bus stops twice a day throughout the school year.  We feel that allowing potentially 14 more vehicles twice
per day for drop off and pick up of children at the proposed child care home would increase the traffic in the
neighborhood and put the residents who are in the subdivision streets at risk.  Secondly, we moved here almost five
years ago from a subdivision in the southern portion of the state.  Unfortunately, the township allowed one business
to operate in that subdivision.  That business increased traffic in the neighborhood with employee vehicles entering
and exiting the subdivision all day long.  Also, allowing that one business to operate in a residential neighborhood
created a slippery slope and before we knew it, there were three businesses allowed to operate.  We would hate to
see that happen here as there was no doubt that the existence of those businesses made our subdivision a much less
desirable place to live than it had been previously.

Thank you for considering our opposition to this request.  We feel a business such as the one described would be
better suited in a mixed use or commercial corridor, not in a residential neighborhood.

Sincerely,
Bruce and Paula Shaffer
2114 Long Leaf Trail
Okemos, MI 48864

mailto:paulashaffer@gmail.com
mailto:shorkey@meridian.mi.us
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


From: Lein, Catherine
To: Brian Shorkey
Subject: Group child care home
Date: Thursday, March 6, 2025 8:54:55 AM

[You don't often get email from leink@msu.edu. Learn why this is important at
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ]

Hello,
I’m responding to the letter that we received about the child care home on Butternut. I do not believe that it is
reasonable to have a business with up to fourteen young children in the neighborhood. I’m concerned about the
increase in cars in the morning and early evening and concerns of safety with neighborhood traffic at those times. It
is usually a quiet street, but we do have new young drivers among the adult drivers.
I am not against a home that provides daycare for several children, but a business is a different matter.
Catherine Lein
517-614-2898
Sent from my iPhone

mailto:leink@msu.edu
mailto:shorkey@meridian.mi.us
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


From: Marilyn Hallgren
To: Brian Shorkey
Subject: Trusha Nayak group childcare
Date: Thursday, March 6, 2025 2:27:53 PM

[You don't often get email from mch2129@gmail.com. Learn why this is important at
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ]

Hi Brian,
We have been thinking several things.  There are preschoolers across the street from them that are often outside in
warmer weather, especially at the pick up hour which is not very safe.  If one or more helpers park in front of
Trusha’s house during the day it will have a serious effect on snow plowing in winter.  There have been a lot of
plowings this winter and the plow would go around any cars in the street and not be able to do our drive directly east
of their area.  The same when the machine that sucks up gutter material in the fall and possibly the Granger waste
and yard waste automatic collections. If a helper  parked in her driveway then that would not be a problem.  Lastly
for the past two days there has been yellow cones on either end of their property warning of children at play.  I don’t
think there would be any children playing outside the house or fenced yard part so maybe it is for pick up and drop
off, but in any case none of us want the cones out there all day.  When we go to sell our home it gives a very
negative vibe of what a potential buyer would experience whether it is true or not.
Since we will be on spring break during the meeting these are our comments.

 We really like Trusha and her husband and are hoping the committee can read this in privacy because if this is read
out loud and she is there it is pretty clean which neighbor wrote it and it would damage relationships. So maybe edit
out the part of our driveway.

Richard and Marilyn Hallgren

Sent from my iPad

mailto:mch2129@gmail.com
mailto:shorkey@meridian.mi.us
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  March 24, 2025 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts), establish group child care 

home for up to twelve children at 2137 Butternut Drive. 
 
 
Trusha Nayak (applicant) has requested a special use permit to operate a group child care home for 
up to 12 children at 2137 Butternut Drive, Okemos, MI 48864 (Subject Property). The 0.3-acre site 
is zoned RA (Single Family–Medium Density). The applicant currently operates a family child care 
home, known as Precious Sprouts, on the Subject Property. Sec. 86-654 of the Code of Ordinances 
allows group child care homes as non-residential special uses in a residential zoning district subject 
to special use permit approval. 
 
In accordance with the Child Care Organizations Act (Public Act 116 of 1973), the Department of 
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA), Child Care Licensing Division, regulates child care facilities 
based on the number of children under supervision. A facility caring for less than six children is 
defined as a family child care home and is not subject to local zoning laws. Facilities with greater 
than six children, with a maximum of 12, are defined as group child care homes and are subject to 
local zoning approval. PA 106 of 2022 amended the state’s child care regulations to allow group 
child care homes to increase their capacity to 14 children if certain criteria are fulfilled. 
 
Zoning and Future Land Use 
The Subject Property is located in 
the RA – Single-Family Residential 
zoning district. The same zoning 
designation applies to all 
surrounding adjacent properties. 
 
The RA district requires a minimum 
of 80 feet of lot frontage and 10,000 
square feet of lot area for new lots. 
The Subject Property totals 
approximately 0.25 acre in size. The 
Subject Property has a total of 
approximately 86 feet of frontage 
along Butternut Drive. The Subject 
Property conforms to the RA zoning 
district. 
  

ZONING MAP 



 
Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts) 
Planning Commission 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

The Future Land Use Map from the 2023 
Master Plan designates the Subject 
Property in the Suburban Residential 
category. The same designation applies to 
all surrounding adjacent properties. The 
Suburban Residential designation 
correlates with the RA Zoning District.  
 
Physical Features 
The subject property is developed with 
an approximate 2,300 square foot 2-story 
family house with partial landscaping 
around the side and rear yards. The rear 
yard has a fenced-in play area that has 
been reviewed and approved by the State 
of Michigan. There are no wetland or 
floodplain issues. 
 
Streets & Traffic 
The site has frontage and access on Butternut Drive. Butternut Drive is two lanes wide and classified 
as a local street. Parking is allowed on Butternut Drive. The daily process for pick-up and drop-off 
traffic at the subject site starts at 8:00 am and ends at 6:00 pm. A typical morning drop-off extends 
from 8:00 am to 9:00 am. A typical afternoon pick-up extends from 4:00 pm to 6:00 pm. The nearest 
major street with access to Butternut Drive is Okemos Road, which is accessible via Cherrywood 
Drive and Riverwood Drive to the west. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The Township’s Code of Ordinances allows a group child care home as a nonresidential use in a 
residential zoning district, subject to Special Use Permit approval. The proposed group child care 
home will operate between the hours of 8:00 am and 6:00 pm, Monday through Friday. According 
to the applicant, two staff members, the owners of the subject site, will be on-site at all times during 
operation. One employee is expected to be hired to work between 8:00 am and 6:00 pm. 
 
The Applicant has applied for a license from the State of Michigan to operate a group child care 
home.  Prior to issuing a license, LARA inspects the property for such items as outdoor play area and 
equipment, water hazards, home maintenance and safety, utility service, ventilation, lighting, exit 
and escape requirements, smoke detectors, and emergency plans.  
 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (the “MZEA,” Public Act 110 of 2006) requires the Township to 
issue a special use permit for a group child care home if it meets all the following standards  
 
1. The group child care home is located no closer than 1,500 feet, as measured along a public street, 

to a) another licensed group child care home b) an adult foster care small group home or large 
group home licensed under the adult foster care facility licensing act c) a facility offering 

 

FUTURE LAND USE 



 
Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts) 
Planning Commission 
Page 3 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

substance abuse treatment and rehabilitation service to 7 or more people d) A community 
correction center, resident home, halfway house, or other similar facility which houses an inmate 
population under the jurisdiction of the department of corrections 

 
Staff has researched the State’s online database for these facilities and found none of the uses listed 
above within 1,500 feet of the subject property. 
 
2. Has appropriate fencing for the safety of the children in the group child care home as determined 

by the local unit of government. 
 
There is a fenced-in play area in the back yard. The area has been inspected and approved for the 
applicant’s Family Child Care by the State of Michigan.  
 
3. Maintains the property consistent with the visible characteristics of the neighborhood.   
 
There is no visible indication of an existing family child care on the subject property. The applicant is 
not proposing any improvements to the exterior of the property to accommodate the proposed group 
child care. 
 
4. Does not exceed 16 hours of operation in a 24-hour period.  The local unit of government may 

limit but not prohibit the operation of a group child care home between the hours of 10:00 pm 
and 6:00 am. 

 
The application documents submitted indicate the hours of operation to be less than 12 hours.  The 
group child care home will operate Monday through Friday between the hours of 8:00 am and 6:00 pm 
for a total of 10 hours per day. 
 
5. Regulations governing signs used by a group child care home to identify itself. 
 
The application documents do not indicate a sign will be installed at the subject site and no sign exists 
on the site. If a sign is later proposed, it must meet the sign standards for a home occupation, which 
allows one non-illuminated wall sign no more than two square feet in size. No freestanding sign is 
allowed in the front yard. 
 
6. Meets regulations, if any, requiring a group child care home operator to provide off-street parking 

accommodations for his or her employees. 
 
The Township does not have any parking requirements for a group child care home operating in a 
residential zoning district. However, the Township does require a single-family residence to have two 
parking spots, which the subject site complies with. In addition, parking is allowed on Downing Street. 
It is anticipated parking will be limited to temporary stops for picking up and dropping off of children. 
 
While the MZEA compels the Township to issue a special use permit if it meets the above 
requirements, it also allows the Township to issue a special use permit with conditions if not all 



 
Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts) 
Planning Commission 
Page 4 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

criteria are met. Special land use standards that apply to this application are found in Sec. 86-654, 
subsections (e) and (f). Staff has reviewed those standards and have the following comments: 
 
Sec. 86-654 (e) Site location standards 
1. Any permitted nonresidential structure or use should preferably be located at the edge of a 

residential district, abutting a business or industrial district, or a public open space. 
 
The Subject Property is within the Riverwood subdivision and does not abut the edge of a residential or 
business/industrial district or public open space. 
 
2. All means shall be utilized to face any permitted nonresidential use on a major street. 
 
The Subject Property is on Butternut Drive, which is a local road. Butternut Drive does not have direct 
access to a major street. The closest major street is Okemos Road, accessible via the internal local road 
system. 
 
3. Motor vehicle entrance and exit should be made on a major street, or as immediately accessible 

from a major street as to avoid the impact of traffic generated by the nonresidential use upon the 
residential area. 

 
As noted, the Subject Property’s driveway is not immediately accessible to a major street. 
 
4. Site locations should be preferred that offer natural or manmade barriers that would lessen the 

effect of the intrusion of the nonresidential use into a residential area. 
 
The backyard contains a fenced-in play area. There is a privacy fence on the west property line and tree 
cover on the south property line. As a result, the Subject Property is partially screened. 
 
5. Any proposed nonresidential use will not require costly or uneconomic extensions of utility 

service. 
 
No extensions of any utilities are necessary for the proposed group child care home. 
 
Sec. 86-654 (f) (2) Group child care homes 
1. Lot area and width shall be not less than that specified for the district in which the proposed use 

is to be located. 
 
The Subject Property is zoned RA – Single-Family Residential. The Subject Property conforms to the 
dimensional requirements of the RA zoning district. 
 
2. No building shall be erected to a height greater than that permitted in the district in which the 

proposed use is to be located. 
 
The existing home on the Subject Property conforms to the 35-foot building height maximum. 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25006 (Precious Sprouts) 
Planning Commission 
Page 5 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

3. All buildings shall be harmonious in appearance with the surrounding residential area and shall 
be similar in design and appearance to any other buildings on the same lot. Exposed equipment 
shall be screened. 

 
The Subject Property is developed as part of the Riverwood single-family residential development. The 
appearance of the Subject Property is harmonious and that is not expected to change if the application 
is approved. 
 
4. Parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of Article VIII of this 

chapter. 
 
Staff estimates that up to four vehicles could safely park in the driveway, in addition to any additional 
parking in the attached garage. The available parking meets the requirements of Article VIII – Off-
Street Parking and Loading. 
 
5. Structures and sites meet all current building, residential, fire and property maintenance codes 

as adopted by the Township. 
 
No concerns have been raised by Township fire or building officials and there are no open violations on 
the Subject Property. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Special Use Permit Application and supporting documents 
2. Sec. 125.3206 from the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 

https://ecode360.com/28784006#28784006


































 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Planning Commission 
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner 
  Meera Kanade, Planning Intern 
 
Date:  March 24, 2025 
 
Re: Parking Ordinance Updates 
 
Staff discussed the progress made with the update on Article VIII – Off-Street Parking and Loading 
in the Zoning Ordinance with the Planning Commission at their regular meetings on Monday, July 
22, 2024, November 18, 2024, December 9, 2024, and January 25, 2025. Staff has discussed several 
potential updates of the Off-Street Parking ordinance with the Planning Commission at those 
meetings. After all of the discussions, the Planning Commission scheduled a public hearing for 
March 24, 2025. 
 
The attached redlined draft ordinance achieves the following: 
 

1. Reduces impervious surfaces in future developments by removing the 25% overflow 
requirement in multiple-family developments, as well as reducing the number of required 
spaces for studios and one-bedroom apartments from 2 to 1.5. 

2. Modernizes the land uses in the list and removes outdates or obsolete terms. 
3. Simplifies some parking calculations for ease of use. 

 
The Planning Commission has asked for hypothetical examples of how the proposed changes will 
affect future developments. Staff has prepared the following two examples for your review. 
 
Example 1 – Multiple-Family Residential 
The first example is for a hypothetical 100-unit multiple-family development. The hypothetical plan 
includes 30 one-bedroom units and 70 units containing two or three bedrooms. The comparison is 
as follows: 
 
• Current Regulations 

30 1-Bedroom Units @ two spots per unit = 60 spaces 
70 2+ Bedroom Units @ two spots per unit = 140 spaces 
25% Overflow for MFR Developments = 50 spaces 

 
Total Current Requirement = 250 spaces 

 
• Proposed Regulations 

30 1-Bedroom Units @ one and a half spots per unit = 45 spaces 
70 2+ Bedroom Units @ two spots per unit = 140 spaces 
No Overflow required 
 
Total Proposed Requirement = 145 spaces 

 



ZA #25002 (Off-Street Parking Regulations) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Example 2 – Commercial Center Developments 
The changes to the commercial center developments are not as straightforward as the changes to 
multiple-family developments because the language was simplified in addition to having the 
calculations changed. In the current ordinance, there are four categories of commercial centers, as 
opposed to two in the proposed ordinance.  
 
For this example, the hypothetical development is for a 100,000 square foot big box retailer. The 
comparison is as follows: 
 
• Current Regulations 

Centers having a GLA between 25,000 and 400,000 square feet 
4 to 4 ½ spaces per 1,000 square feet = 480 to 540 spaces 

 
• Proposed Regulations 

Centers greater than 50,000 square feet 
1 space per 400 square feet = 300 spaces 

 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval as written, recommend approval of a revised 
version, or recommend denial of the proposed zoning amendment. A resolution will be provided at 
a future meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Sec. 86-755 – Off-Street Parking and Loading – Clean  
2. Sec. 86-755 – Off-Street Parking and Loading – Redlined 

 



§ 86-755. Schedule of requirements for parking space.	

[Code 1974, § 85-10; Ord. No. 2005-01, 1-30-2005; Ord. No. 2009-03, 4-19-2009] 
Parking space shall be provided in accordance with the design standards of this chapter and according to 
this schedule: 
 

Use	 Number	of	Motor	Parking	Spaces	Required	
Per	Unit	of	Measure	

Residential	  
Single-family dwelling or duplex living unit 2 for each dwelling unit  
Multiple-family District 1.5 for each ef iciency or one-bedroom unit and 

2 for each dwelling unit with 2 or more 
bedrooms, 

  
Housing for the elderly 1 for each 2 units and 1 for each employee on 

peak employment shifts. Should units revert to 
general occupancy, then 1.5 for each ef iciency 
or one-bedroom unit and 2 for each dwelling 
unit with 2 or more bedrooms 

Mobile home parks 2 for each mobile home or mobile home site 
  
  
Institutional	  
Places of worship	 1 for each 5 ixed seats, 10 linear feet of pews, 

and one for each 30 square feet of assembly lor 
area without ixed seats  

Hospitals	 1 for each 1 bed 
Homes for the aged and convalescent homes	 1 for each 4 beds plus 1 for each employee on 

the largest working shift 
Child care centers and adult care centers	 1 per every teacher or caregiver 
Fire and police stations	 1 for each employee on duty during the highest 

staffed shift plus 25% for visitors 
Elementary and junior high schools	 1 for each 1 teacher and administrator in 

addition to the requirements of the auditorium 
Senior high schools	 1 for each employee plus 1 for each 10 students, 

based on the number of students that the facility 
is designed to handle at any one time, in 
addition to the requirements of the auditorium 

Theaters, auditoriums, and concert halls	 1 for each 4 seats at maximum capacity plus 1 
for each 2 employees 

	  
Museums and art galleries	 1 space for every 500 square feet of gallery area, 

1 space per employee, plus 1 space for every 4 
seats in a theater or auditorium 

Dance halls, civic clubs, fraternal orders, clubs, 
union halls or any similar type use	

1 space for each 100 square feet of useable loor 
area 

	  



	  
	  
Libraries	 1 spaces for every 250 square feet of gross loor 

area (GFA) plus 1 per 2 employees 
Business	and	Commercial	  
Athletic clubs and health spas	 1 per 300 square feet of useable loor space. 

Accessory uses shall require additional parking 
Business or trade schools	 1 space for each seat plus 1 space for each 

teacher or other employee 
Commercial centers and shopping malls	  
Centers less than 50,000 square feet 1 for each 200 square feet of gross loor area 
  
  
Centers greater than 50,000 square feet 1 for each 400 square feet of gross area 
	  
	  
	  
	  
All other retail businesses, unless speci ically 
de ined	

 

For businesses with a gross loor area (GFA) less 
than 25,000 square feet	

5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
5 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

For businesses with a gross loor area (GFA) 
equal to or greater than 25,000 square feet	

4 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
4 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

Motor vehicle, recreational vehicle, boat, or 
mobile home sales or service establishments	

1 for each 200 square feet of useable loor space 
of sales room, 1 for each service bay, and 1 for 
each employee 

Dance or music studios	 1 space for every 200 square feet of 
instructional area plus 1 for each teacher 

Restaurants, taverns, bars, nightclubs, and 
brewpubs	

One (1) space per 4 seats + one (1) space per 
employee + 5 stacking spaces per drive-through 
lane.  
Outdoor seating areas shall count toward total 
parking required unless the proprietor 
demonstrates that outdoor seating areas do not 
increase the capacity of the restaurant.  

	  
	  
Barber shops, beauty shops	 1.5 spaces for each chair, plus 1 for every 2 

employees 
Laundromats and coin-operated dry cleaners	 1 for each 2 washing or dry cleaning machines 
	  
Mini storage establishments and Enclosed 
climate controlled storage facilities	

10 exterior spaces for the storage facility, plus 2 
for the of ice, plus 1 space for each employee. 
Rows between storage buildings shall be 
designed to allow for simultaneous vehicle 
parking and passage 

	  



Drive-in carwashes, automatic	 15 stacking spaces for each washing bay, plus 1 
space for each 2 employees 

Drive-in carwashes, self-service	 3 stacking spaces for each washing bay 
Gasoline service stations	 1 for each bay and 1 for each employee on the 

largest shift. Parking shall be provided for 
convenience stores and other uses operated in 
conjunction with a gasoline service station, 
based on standards set forth herein. 

Bowling alleys	 4 for each 1 alley, in addition to any requirement 
for other uses such as bar, restaurant, or billiard 
room 

  
Golf courses open to the general public, except 
miniature or "par-three" 

4 for each 1 golf hole and 1 for each employee. 
Additional spaces shall be provided as required 
for clubhouse, restaurant, pro shop, or other 
af iliated facilities 

Golf courses, miniature or "par three"	 3 for each 1 hole plus 1 for each 1 employee 
Golf driving range, stand alone 1 space for every two tees 
Mortuary establishments	 1 for each 50 square feet of usable loor space 
Motels, hotels, or other commercial lodging 
establishments	

1 for each 1 occupancy unit plus extra spaces for 
dining rooms, ball rooms, or meeting rooms as 
required by this division.  

Industrial	  
Industrial or research establishments	 1 for every 2 employees on the largest working 

shift 
Warehousing or wholesale establishments	 1 for every 2 employees on the largest working 

shift  
Contractor's establishments	 1 for each 1,000 square feet of gross loor area 

(GFA), but no less than 5 
Ofϐices	  
General Of ice 3 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross loor 

area (minimum) to 4 spaces per 1,000 feet of 
gross loor area (maximum) 

  
Dental of ice 1 space per 300 square feet of gross loor area 
Medical of ice 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross loor 

area 
 Financial institutions (banks, credit unions, 
etc.) 

1 space for every 150 square feet of useable 
loor area and 3 stacking spaces 

 



§ 86-755. Schedule of requirements for parking space.	

[Code 1974, § 85-10; Ord. No. 2005-01, 1-30-2005; Ord. No. 2009-03, 4-19-2009] 
Parking space shall be provided in accordance with the design standards of this chapter and according to 
this schedule: 
 

Use	 Number	of	Motor	Parking	Spaces	Required	
Per	Unit	of	Measure	

Residential	  
Single-family dwelling or duplex living unit 2 for each dwelling unit plus 1 additional space 

for each roomer if any 
Multiple-family in RDD, RD, RN, or RC District 1.5 for each ef iciency or one-bedroom unit and 

2 for each dwelling unit with 2 or more 
bedrooms, plus expansion capacity of 25% 

Multiple-family in RCC District 2 for each 1 bedroom or ef iciency dwelling unit; 
3 spaces for each 2- or more bedroom dwelling 
unit, plus expansion 

Housing for the elderly 1 for each 2 units and 1 for each employee or 
doctoron peak employment shifts. Should units 
revert to general occupancy, then 1.5 for each 
ef iciency or one-bedroom unit and 2 for each 
dwelling unit with 2 or more bedrooms2 spaces 
per unit shall be provided 

Mobile home parks 2 for each mobile home or mobile home site 
Fraternity or sorority 1 for each person permitted to occupy the 

building under the provisions of this chapter 
Functional family 1 for each person over the age of 15 years 

permitted to occupy the building under the 
provisions of this chapter 

Institutional	  
Churches or templesPlaces of worship	 1 for each 5 ixed seats, or 10 linear feet of pews, 

and one for each 30 square feet of assembly lor 
area without ixed seats in the main room for 
worship 

Hospitals	 1 for each 1 bed 
Homes for the aged and convalescent homes	 1 for each 24 beds plus 1 for each employee on 

the largest working shift 
Child care centers and adult care centers	 1 per every 5 students or adults plus 1 for every 

teacher or caregiver 
Fire and police stations	 1 for each employee on duty during the highest 

staffed shift plus 25% for visitors 
Elementary and junior and high schools	 1 for each 1 teacher and administrator in 

addition to the requirements of the auditorium 
Senior high schools	 1 for each 1 teacher, and administratoremployee 

and plus 1 for each 10 students, based on the 
number of students that the facility is designed 
to handle at any one time, in addition to the 
requirements of the auditorium 

Commented [BS1]: "Roomer" is an an quated term 

Commented [BS2]: Consolidated the MFR language 

Commented [BS3]: Consolidated the MFR language 

Commented [TS4]: Change to match the new MF 
standard 

Commented [BS5]: From Delhi Twp, seems more realis c 



Theaters, auditoriums, and concert halls	 1 for each 4 seats at maximum capacity plus 1 
for each 2 employees 

Stadium, sports arena or assembly similar place 
of outdoor	

1 for each 3 seats or 6 feet of benches 

Museums and art galleries	 1 space for every 250 500 square feet of gallery 
area, 1 space per employee, plus 1 space for 
every 4 seats in a theater or auditorium 

Dance halls, civic clubs, fraternal orders, clubs, 
union halls or any similar type use	

1 space for every 4 persons permitted to occupy 
the building by local ordinance or state law, plus 
additional parking for 25% excess capacity1 
space for each 100 square feet of useable loor 
area 

Private golf clubs, ski clubs, swimming clubs or 
beaches, tennis clubs or similar uses	

1 space per 4 persons of maximum anticipated 
capacity as approved by the Planning 
Commission, plus additional parking for 25% 
excess capacity 

Golf courses open to the general public, except 
miniature or "par-three"	

6 for each 1 golf hole and 1 for each employee 

Golf courses, miniature or "par three"	 3 for each 1 hole plus 1 for each 1 employee 
Libraries	 1 spaces for every 200 250 square feet of gross 

loor area (GFA) plus 1 per 2 employees 
Business	and	Commercial	  
Athletic clubs and health spas	 1 1/4 spaces for every 4 persons permitted to 

occupy the building by local ordinance or state 
law1 per 300 square feet of useable loor space. 
Accessory uses shall require additional parking 

Business or trade schools	 1 space for each seat plus 1 space for each 
teacher or other employee 

Commercial centers and shopping malls	  
Centers less than 50,000 square feet 1 for each 200 square feet of gross loor area 
  
  
Centers greater than 50,000 square feet 1 for each 400 square feet of gross area 
For centers having a gross loor area (GFA) less 
than 25,000 square feet	

5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
5 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

For centers having a gross leasable area (GLA) 
equal to or greater than 25,000 square feet but 
less than 400,000 square feet	

4 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
4 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 
but not less than 125 spaces 

For centers having a gross leasable area (GLA) 
equal to or greater than 400,000 square feet but 
less than 600,000 square feet	

4 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 5 
spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

For centers having a gross leasable area (GLA) 
equal to or greater than 600,000 square feet	

5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum and 
maximum) 

All other retail businesses, unless speci ically 
de ined	

 

For businesses with a gross loor area (GFA) less 
than 25,000 square feet	

5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
5 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

For businesses with a gross loor area (GFA) 
equal to or greater than 25,000 square feet	

4 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 
4 1/2 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum) 

Commented [BS6]: Moved to Commercial and 'golf 
course' separated out 

Commented [BS7]: Moved to commercial 

Commented [BS8]: Moved to Commercial 

Commented [BS9]: This 300 number comes from a rough 
average of four examples from APA's PAS report on parking 
standards 

Commented [TS10]: Pull the reference here so we have 
some backup 



Motor vehicle, recreational vehicle, boat, or 
mobile home sales or service establishments	

1 for each 200 square feet of useable loor space 
of sales room, 1 for each service bay, and 1 for 
each 1 vehicle displayed for saleemployee 

Dance or music studios	 1 space for every 200 square feet of 
instructional area plus 1 for each teacher 

Restaurants, taverns, bars, nightclubs, and 
brewpubs	

One (1) space per 4 seats + one (1) space per 
employee + 5 stacking spaces per drive-through 
lane.  
Outdoor seating areas shall count toward total 
parking required unless the proprietor 
demonstrates that outdoor seating areas do not 
increase the capacity of the restaurant. 1 for 
each 75 square feet of usable loor area, plus 1 
for every 4 seats or 1 for 37 1/2 square feet of 
usable loor area, whichever is greater 

Drive-in and self-service restaurants	 1 for every 3 patron seats and 1 for each 
employee on duty during the highest staffed 
shift 

Drive-up uses, except drive-in restaurants	 In addition to the required parking for the 
principal use, each drive-up lane shall have 
suf icient stacking room for 3 cars. Each 
stacking space shall measure a minimum of 20 
feet in length. A bypass lane shall be provided 

Barber shops, beauty shops	 21.5 spaces for each chair, plus 1 for every 2 
employees 

Laundromats and coin-operated dry cleaners	 1 for each 2 washing or dry cleaning machines 
Mini-storage establishments	 5 spaces for the of ice, plus 2 spaces for a 

resident manager. Access to individual storage 
units shall provide for loading/unloading of 
vehicles adjacent to units without impeding 
through internal traf ic low 

Mini storage establishments and Enclosed 
climate controlled storage facilities	

10 exterior spaces for the storage facility, plus 
52 for the of ice, plus 1 space for each employee. 
Access by vehicles to/from and within the 
facility for loading/unloading shall be designed 
to promote smooth traf ic low in and out of the 
structure without impeding external site vehicle 
movementsRows between storage buildings 
shall be designed to allow for simultaneous 
vehicle parking and passage 

Drive-in banks or laundries	 3 standing spaces for each drive-in window in 
addition to normal parking required for banks 
or laundries 

Drive-in carwashes, automatic	 15 standing stacking spaces for each washing 
bay, plus 1 space for each 2 employees 

Drive-in carwashes, self-service	 3 standing stacking spaces for each washing bay 
Gasoline service stations	 1 for each bay and 1 for each employee on the 

largest shift. Parking shall be provided for 
convenience stores and other uses operated in 

Commented [BS11]: Mini storage and enclosed storage 
combined into one 



conjunction with a gasoline service station, 
based on standards set forth herein. 

Bowling alleys	 54 for each 1 alley, in addition to any 
requirement for other uses such as bar, 
restaurant, or billiard room 

  
Golf courses open to the general public, except 
miniature or "par-three" 

4 for each 1 golf hole and 1 for each employee. 
Additional spaces shall be provided as required 
for clubhouse, restaurant, pro shop, or other 
af iliated facilities 

Golf courses, miniature or "par three"	 3 for each 1 hole plus 1 for each 1 employee 
Golf driving range, stand alone 1 space for every two tees 
Mortuary establishments	 1 for each 50 square feet of usable loor space 
Motels, hotels, or other commercial lodging 
establishments	

1 for each 1 occupancy unit plus extra spaces for 
dining rooms, ball rooms, or meeting rooms as 
required by this division. Should units revert to 
multiple-type use then 2 spaces per unit shall be 
provided 

Industrial	  
Industrial or research establishments	 1 for every 2 employees on the largest working 

shift 
Warehousing or wholesale establishments	 1 for every 2 employees on the largest working 

shift or 1 for every 1,700 square feet of useable 
loor space, whichever is greater 

Contractor's establishments	 1 for each 1,000 square feet of gross loor area 
(GFA), but no less than 5 

Ofϐices	  
General Of ice  
General Of iceMinimum 3 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross loor 

area (minimum) to 4 spaces per 1,000 feet of 
gross loor area (maximum) 

Maximum 4 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross loor 
area 

Dental of ice 1 space per 300 square feet of gross loor area 
Stand-alone mMedical of ice 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross loor 

area 
 Financial institutions (banks, credit unions, 
etc.) 

1 space for every 150 square feet of useable 
loor area and 3 stacking spaces 

 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  March 24, 2025 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments), to construct an adult 

use marijuana provisioning center at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, Okemos, MI  
48864. 

 
 
Okemos Local Investments (Applicant) has submitted a Special Use Permit (SUP) application for the 
construction of a 2,030 square foot adult use marijuana retailer at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, 
Okemos, MI  48864 (Subject Property). This is a major amendment from the Applicant’s previous 
application (SUP #24020) for an adult use marijuana retailer in the existing 2,587 square foot 
building at the Subject Property. The Subject Property is approximately 0.62 acre in size and is zoned 
RP – Research and Office Park. This SUP application follows the Board of Trustees’ approval of the 
adult use marijuana conditional license on May 9, 2024. 
 
A public hearing for this application was held at the Planning Commission’s regular meeting on 
Monday, March 10, 2025, during which the Planning Commission indicated support for the 
application. There was no comment from the public. 
 
The original staff report, dated March 10, 2025, is attached. Additional materials from the public 
hearing may be found at the following link: https://www.meridian.mi.us/government/boards-and-
commissions/agendas-packets-and-minutes/-folder-3610#docan5601_5944_42 
 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution to approve the request is provided. Staff recommends approval of Special Use Permit 
#25003 for the construction of an adult use marijuana retailer at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, with 
the conditions listed in the resolution. 
 
Staff would offer the following motion for the Planning Commission to consider during their review of 
the proposed rezoning request. Should the Planning Commission have additional reasons for 
supporting the recommendation, they can be added to the end of the motion. 
 
Move to adopt the resolution to recommend approval of SUP #25003 to construct an adult use 
marijuana retailer at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, Okemos, MI  48864, for the following 
reasons: 

 
• The proposed project conforms with the Township Master Plan and the Future Land Use 

map. 
• The proposed project conforms with the Adult Use Marihuana regulations that have been 

adopted by the Township. 
• The proposed project that would result fits the character of the area.  



 
Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Planning Commission (March 24, 2025) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

 
Attachments 
1. Resolution to approve SUP #25003. 
2. Staff Memo, Dated March 10, 2025. 
   
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #25003 
 (Okemos Land Investments) 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 
24th day of March, 2025 at 6:30 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 The following resolution was offered by Commissioner __________ and supported by                              
Commissioner __________. 
 

WHEREAS, Okemos Land Investments has submitted a request to establish a 2,030 square 
foot adult use marihuana retailer located at 4360 South Hagadorn Road; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board adopted both zoning and non-zoning ordinances allowing 
commercial medical marihuana facilities in designated overlay areas throughout the Township at its 
meeting on May 21, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, Township Board adopted standards to allow adult use marihuana retailers in 

designated overlay areas throughout the Township at its meeting on July 11, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the overlay areas adopted by the Township Board allow one adult use marihuana 
retailer in each one of five overlay areas, subject to the approval of a special use permit reviewed by 
the Planning Commission and approved by the Township Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the subject site is located entirely within Overlay Area 4 and is appropriately 

zoned RP (Research and Office Park), which allows adult use marihuana retailers by special use 
permit; and   

 
WHEREAS, the applicant was required to submit for Special Use Permit approval within 60 

days of the Board’s conditional approval of their license; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted for Special Use Permit approval as required by the 

Township’s adult use marihuana ordinances; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on the Special Use 

Permit application at their regular meeting on August 12, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission asked the applicant to produce an up to date 

traffic assessment showing more recent traffic data; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant complied and sent an updated traffic assessment to the Township on 

February 10, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the updated traffic assessment concluded that the expected traffic generated by 

the proposed adult use marihuana retailer would be handled by the existing road system; and 
 



Resolution to Approve 
SUP #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant indicated at that time that they now wished to redevelop the site 
which triggered a major amendment to the application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on the amended Special 

Use Permit application at their regular meeting on March 10, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed adult use marihuana retailer meets the required setbacks from any 

public or private K-12 school, church, place of worship or other religious facility, library, preschool, or 
child care center established in Section 40-31 of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the proposed adult use marihuana retailer will not adversely affect adjacent land 

uses or the health, safety, and general welfare of the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a 

special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Special Use Permit #25003, subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
1. Approval of SUP #25003 is required to be followed by site plan approval.  
 
2. Approval is subject to the applicant receiving approval of a Commercial Adult Use Marihuana 

Facility permit by the Director of Community Planning and Development. 
 
3. Approval is subject to the applicant receiving Final Approval for an adult use marihuana 

license from the State of Michigan, Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs. 
 
4. The applicant shall obtain and maintain any and all other applicable permits, licenses, and 

approvals necessary to operate the proposed commercial adult use marihuana provisioning 
center from the State of Michigan, Township, and any other applicable agencies.  Copies of 
all permits, licenses, and approvals shall be submitted to the Department of Community 
Planning and Development.  

 
5. Any proposed future changes to the scope of the SUP will require an amendment to Special 

Use Permit #25003. 
 
6. All applicable conditions from previous approvals for the Subject Property shall remain in 

effect.  
 
7. The retailer shall remain in compliance with the operational requirements established in 

Section 40-31 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
8. The special use permit shall be revoked if the applicant fails to maintain a valid Adult Use 

Marihuana Facility permit from the Township and Facility License from the State of 
Michigan. 
 

ADOPTED: YEAS:  
                                                                                             
  NAYS:   
 



Resolution to Approve 
SUP #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Page 3 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chairperson of the Planning 
Commission of the Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission on the 24th day of March, 2025. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Alisande Shrewsbury 
       Planning Commission Chairperson 
 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  March 10, 2025 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments), to construct an adult 

use marijuana provisioning center at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, Okemos, MI  
48864.  

 
 
Okemos Local Investments (Applicant) has submitted a Special Use Permit (SUP) application for the 
construction of a 2,030 square foot adult use marijuana retailer at 4360 South Hagadorn Road, 
Okemos, MI  48864 (Subject Property). This is a major amendment from the Applicant’s previous 
application (SUP #24020) for an adult use marijuana retailer in the existing 2,587 square foot 
building at the Subject Property. The Subject Property is approximately 0.62 acre in size and is zoned 
RP – Research and Office Park. This SUP application follows the Board of Trustees’ approval of the 
adult use marijuana conditional license on May 9, 2024. 
 
Zoning and Future Land Use 
The Subject Property is located in 
the RP – Research and Office Park 
zoning district. The same zoning 
designation applies to the adjacent 
properties to the north, east, and 
south. The property to the west is 
zoned RR – Rural Residential and is 
Michigan State University property.  
 
The RP district requires a minimum 
of 200 feet of lot frontage and 2 
acres of lot area for new lots.  The 
Subject Property is an existing 
parcel and is approximately 0.62 
acres in size (approximately 27,000 
square feet) and has approximately 
82 feet of frontage along South 
Hagadorn Road. 
 

 

ZONING MAP 



Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Planning Commission (March 10, 2025) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

The Future Land Use Map from the 2023 
Master Plan designates the subject site 
in the Business/Technology category. 
This is likewise true for the properties to 
the north, east, and south. The property 
to the west is shown as Michigan State 
University property. 
 
Staff Analysis 
Applications for special land use permits 
are reviewed under Sec. 86-126 in the 
Zoning Ordinance. Based on that review, 
Staff has the following comments: 
 

1. This application is a major 
amendment from the Applicant’s 
prior SUP application (#24020) 
in 2024. At that time, the 
Planning Commission asked the Applicant was asked to update the traffic assessment. This 
was completed and the updated traffic assessment is attached. After the traffic assessment 
was completed, the Applicant decided to amend the application to reflect the decision to 
demolish the existing building on the Subject Property and construct a new, slightly smaller 
building. The decision to not use the existing building constituted a major amendment to 
SUP #24020. 

2. The Subject Property lies within Adult Use Marijuana Overlay Area 4. This has been 
approved of one of the only five areas in the Township where adult use marijuana retailers 
are allowed. An adult use marijuana retail conditional license has been approved for the site.  

3. The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter and the proposed adult 
use marijuana retailer conforms with the Subject Property’s zoning and Future Land Use 
designations. 

4. The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township’s 
comprehensive development plan of current adoption. 

5. The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and 
that such a use will not change the essential character of the same area.  

6. The project is not expected to adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 

7. The project is not expected to be detrimental to the economic welfare of the surrounding 
properties or the community. 

8. The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, 
stormwater drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the 
persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to 
provide any such service. 

 
2023 FUTURE LAND USE 

 



Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Planning Commission (March 10, 2025) 
Page 3 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

9. The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site 
sanitation facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater are 
proposed, they shall be properly designed and capable of handling the long term needs of 
the proposed project. 

10. The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

11. The project is not expected to directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the 
natural resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, 
water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, or wildlife areas. 

12. Attachment #7 details the safety and odor control that is being proposed by the Applicant. 
The safety and odor control systems meet the Township’s requirements. 

13. The Subject Property is adequately served by water and sewer. An attached traffic 
assessment (Attachment #6, dated November 2024) verifies that the existing roads are 
capable of handling the traffic and no traffic study is required.  

14. A site plan was submitted (Attachment #5) as required by Sec. 40-30. If this SUP application 
is approved, the applicant will be required to formally submit for site plan approval before 
any construction or land clearing is approved. 

 
Based on the information provided by the Applicant, Staff has identified no major concerns that would 
negatively impact surrounding properties or the Township at large while reviewing the proposed 
Special Use Permit. If the Special Use Permit for the project is approved by the Planning Commission 
and the Township Board, the applicant will be required to submit for Site Plan Review and/or any 
required building permits prior to beginning operations. 
 
Recreational Marihuana Approval Process 
Applicants for a Recreational Marihuana Facility must go through various steps in order to establish a 
facility within Meridian Township, including securing local and state approval. Applications are 
submitted to the Director of Community Planning and Development for review. All inspections, 
review, processing, and competitive review, if necessary, shall be completed within 90 days of a 
complete application. A completed application is forwarded to the Township Board, who must 
approve or deny the application within 120 days of a completed application and fees. If the application 
is approved, then the Applicant shall receive a conditional approval, the conditions of which must be 
met for the Applicant to receive a Permit as the Permit Holder. If the Township Board issues 
conditional approval, then the Applicant must submit their SUP application to the Planning 
Commission within 60 days. Recreational Marihuana permits are reviewed for renewal or 
amendment, but the SUP does not require annual renewal. If the applicant maintains a valid State 
license and remains in good standing with both the State and Township a renewal will be granted for 
another one year period.   
 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the 
proposed special use permit. A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 



Special Use Permit #25003 (Okemos Local Investments) 
Planning Commission (March 10, 2025) 
Page 4 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Attachments 
1. Special use permit application 
2. Attachment 1: List of Persons Possessing Property Interest and Description of Property Interest 
3. Attachment 2: Legal Description for 4360 South Hagadorn Road, Okemos, MI  48864 
4. Attachment 3: Description of Project and Development Phases 
5. Attachment 4: Nonrefundable Application Fee 
6. Attachment 5: Site Plan, dated January 27, 2025 
7. Attachment 6: Building Floor Plans and Elevations, dated January 30, 2025 
8. Attachment 7: Business Operation Plan 
9. Attachment 8: Traffic Impact Analysis, dated November 14, 2024 

 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 
To:  Members of Planning Commission 
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  March 24, 2025 
 
Re: Project Report 
 
As of March 2025, the following projects are under construction, under site plan review, or have been submitted as a new 
application (Changes since the last report are shown in bold): 
 
Under Construction 

Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 
1. Grand Reserve  Central Park Drive March 6, 2024  115 SFR Homes Under Construction 

2. Sanctuary II  North of Robins Way March 15, 2022 (Plat) 7 SFR Homes  Under construction 

3. Newton Pointe  6276 Newton Road February 24, 2022 Mixed Use w/  Phase 2 
105 MFR & 14 SFR Under construction 

4. Silverleaf Phase 1 West Bennett Road June 26, 2024  25 SFR   Under construction 

5. Knob Hill Apartments 2300 Knob Hill Drive N/A   Reconstruction of  Under construction 
Apartment buildings  

6. Starbucks  2731 W. Grand River October 28, 2024 New Starbucks  Under construction 

7. Puff Puff Tobacco 4686 Marsh Road N/A   New Retail  Under construction  

Under Site Plan Review 
Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 

1. Haslett Village  SW Corner of Haslett July 26, 2019     Under Site Plan review 
Road and Marsh Road (MUPUD)  290 MFR   

2. Elevation Phase 4 North of Jolly Road,    MUPUD Amendment Under Site Plan review  
West of Jolly Oak       Awaiting revisions  



 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

3. Meijer   2055 Grand River    New Gas Canopy Under Site Plan Review 

New Applications 
Name   Location  Description    Status 

1. New Coffee Shop Hamilton Road  New Business    Under building review 

2. Okemos Local  
Investments  4360 Hagadorn  Adult Use Marihuana   PC Decision 3/24/2025 

3. Okemos Gateway 1614 W. Grand River Adult Use Marihuana   Awaiting Site Plan 

4. Panda Express  4990 Marsh Road Drive-Through    Awaiting Site Plan 

5. Montessori Radmoor 2745 Mount Hope 1,276 sf Expansion   Minor SUP Amendment 

6. New Restaurant 5951 Marsh Road Takeout Restaurant   Under building review 

7. Mr. Car Wash  4880 Marsh Road New Car Wash    PC Public Hearing 4/14/2024 




